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  June 3, 2022 
 
BY EMAIL & UPS 
 
Scott Moeller 
CEO, American CryptoFed DAO 
1607 Capitol Ave, Ste 327 
Cheyenne, WY 82001 
scott.moeller@americancryptofed.org 
 
 Re:  In the Matter of American CryptoFed DAO LLC 

AP File No. 3-20650 
 
Dear Mr. Moeller: 
 
 I write to respond to your letter dated May 30, 2022. That letter 
described American CryptoFed DAO LLC’s (“American CryptoFed”) plan to 
“proceed with implementing its business plan as described in the Form 10 and 
Form S1” that American CryptoFed had previously filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (“SEC” or “Commission”). 
 
 Planned Distribution of Locke Tokens 
 

Under Section 5 of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”), any 
offering of securities needs to be registered or exempt from registration. If 
neither is true, the offering is illegal. There is no registration statement in 
effect for any offering of the Locke or Ducat tokens, and you have not identified 
any exemption which you assert applies to their distribution. Accordingly, your 
letter appears to announce a plan to willfully violate Section 5 of the Securities 
Act, and possibly other provisions of the federal securities laws, by offering 
and/or selling Locke tokens to investors without an effective registration 
statement, even though you have applied to register these same tokens as 
securities with the SEC. Violations of the provisions of the Securities Act can 
have serious consequences.  
 
 Your letter asserts that the distribution will be “as described in the 
Form 10 and Form S1.” But the effectiveness of the Form 10 was stayed by the 
Commission’s November 10, 2021 Order Instituting Proceedings. Even if the 

Am. CryptoFed DAO Exhibit 246



 

2 
 

Form 10 was effective (which it isn’t), the distribution would still need to be 
pursuant to either the Form S-1 or another Securities Act registration 
statement, or pursuant to an exemption from registration. The Form S-1 is not 
yet effective as it contains a delaying amendment.1 Moreover, the Commission, 
on November 9, 2021, issued an Order Directing Examination and Designating 
Officers Pursuant to Section 8(e) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“8(e) 
Examination Order”), which we are serving on you today along with this letter. 
 
 Please note that while Securities Act Section 5(a) prohibits the sale of 
securities unless there is a registration statement in effect (or an exemption 
applies), Securities Act Section 5(c) prohibits either the offer or sale of any 
security “while the registration statement is the subject of a refusal order or 
stop order or (prior to the effective date of the registration statement) any 
public proceeding or examination under section 77h of this title.” 15 U.S.C. 
§77e(c). Thus, American CryptoFed can neither offer nor sell the Locke tokens 
pursuant to the Form S-1 while the 8(e) Examination Order is in effect.  
 
 You can expect to hear from us in the near future with requests 
pursuant to the 8(e) Examination Order, including requests to provide 
documents and testimony. 
 
 Request for a Cease-and-Desist Order 
 
 Your letter requests, without citing any provision of law, that the 
Division of Enforcement issue a Cease-and-Desist order. We believe you are 
again conflating the role of the Division of Enforcement and the Commission in 
this proceeding. The Division of Enforcement does not issue orders, that is the 
role of the Commission. Additionally, while some Commission administrative 
proceedings are captioned as “Cease and Desist” proceedings (see, e.g., 15 
U.S.C. §77h-1), there is no requirement that proceedings take that precise 
form in order to halt conduct. Here, the Commission’s November 10, 2021 
Order Instituting Proceedings stays the effectiveness of American CryptoFed’s 
Form 10. At the conclusion of this proceeding, the Division of Enforcement 
may seek, and the Commission may enter, an order denying or revoking the 

                                                        
1 The Form S-1 states in relevant part: “The registrant hereby amends this 
registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its 
effective date until the registrant shall file a further amendment which 
specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become 
effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act or until the 
registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities 
and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may 
determine. 

Am. CryptoFed DAO Exhibit 246



 

3 
 

registration of that Form 10. Neither the Commission nor the Division of 
Enforcement needs to use the phrase “Cease and Desist” in taking this step. 
 
 If you proceed with your announced plan to distribute the Locke tokens 
despite the November 9, 2021 8(e) Examination Order and the November 10, 
2021 Order Instituting Proceedings, we reserve the right to take any and all 
appropriate steps. 
 
 Timing of This Proceeding 
 
 Your letter appears to complain about the length of time certain motions 
have been pending. We remind you that, at the outset of this proceeding, we 
suggested that we jointly ask the Commission to expedite this matter and you 
responded that “it would be inappropriate to ask ‘the Commission to take this 
matter under consideration on an expedited basis.’” (Nov. 26, 2021 email from 
Marian Orr to Christopher Bruckmann). You then filed more than a dozen 
meritless motions that were so frivolous that the Commission instituted 
special procedures governing the filing of motions in this matter. You have 
opposed every effort we have made to move this case forward expeditiously, 
including through seeking a briefing schedule, and in response to our most 
recent attempt to obtain a briefing schedule requested that the Commission 
sanction the Division of Enforcement merely for seeking a briefing schedule. 
Thus, to the extent that the Commission has not acted as quickly as you now 
appear to want it to have acted, it is largely, if not entirely, because of your 
actions. We continue to believe that requesting an expedited briefing schedule 
is the appropriate course of action in this matter and suggest we meet and 
confer to discuss a joint motion requesting an expedited briefing schedule. 
Please let us know your availability for a meet-and-confer session. 
 
 Request for Howey Analysis 
 
 Your letter again requests our internal work product and analysis 
regarding why the Locke and Ducat tokens are securities. As we have 
explained, repeatedly, this information is privileged and protected from 
disclosure. We decline to provide it. We also remind you that you choose to 
register these tokens as securities by filing with the Commission a Form 10 
which stated on the cover page that the Locke and Ducat tokens were 
“Securities to be registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act” (emphasis 
added). 
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Materially Misleading Statements in American CryptoFed’s 
Filings with the Commission. 
 
In addition to Securities Act Section 5’s restrictions on unregistered 

offerings of securities, the federal securities laws contain prohibitions against 
materially misleading statements and omissions in connection with the offer 
and sale of securities. See generally 15 U.S.C. § 77q; 15 U.S.C. § 78j; 17 C.F.R. 
§240.10b-5. As we, and the Division of Corporation Finance, have repeatedly 
informed you, American CryptoFed’s Form 10 appears to contain numerous 
materially misleading statements. See, e.g., Division of Enforcement’s 
Omnibus Memorandum in Opposition to Respondent’s Motions for a More 
Definite Statement at 6-8 (and documents cited therein).  

 
Your planned distribution, as described in your May 30, 2022 letter, 

appears to compound these problems. The letter outlines a plan to introduce 
Non-Fungible Token (or “NFT”) certificates into the offering process. Neither 
American CryptoFed’s Form 10, nor its Form S-1 contain any disclosures 
regarding the use of NFT certificates as part of the offering process. Based on 
your description of this process it certainly appears that this is material 
information that a reasonable investor would want to know, and its omission 
from both the Form 10 and Form S-1 raises questions as to whether American 
CryptoFed offering or selling the Locke or Ducat tokens in this manner would 
violate the antifraud provisions of the federal securities laws. See, e.g., 17 
C.F.R. §240.10b-5 (“It shall be unlawful for any person . . . to omit to state a 
material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of 
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading . . . in 
connection with the purchase or sale of any security). 
 
 Please feel free to contact us to further discuss any of these issues. 
 
       Regards, 
 
       /s/ Christopher M. Bruckmann 
       Christopher M. Bruckmann 
 
cc: Xiaomeng Zhou (by email to zhouxm@americancryptofed.org) 
 
Encl: 8(e) Examination Order 
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 NON-PUBLIC 
 
 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 Before the 
 SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

November 9, 2021 
  
 
 
In the Matter of 
 
American CryptoFed DAO LLC, 
  
 Respondent. 
 
 

 
 

ORDER DIRECTING EXAMINATION 
AND DESIGNATING OFFICERS 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 8(e) OF THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 

   
  
 

I. 
 
 The Commission’s public official files disclose that:   

 
A. American CryptoFed DAO LLC (CIK No. 1881928) (“American CryptoFed”) is a 

Wyoming “Decentralized Autonomous Organization” (“DAO”) that was established on July 1, 
2021.  It is the successor entity to American CryptoFed, Inc., which was incorporated in Wyoming 
on February 11, 2021.  On September 16, 2021, American CryptoFed filed a Form 10 registration 
statement with the Commission, seeking to register two classes of digital assets, the Ducat token 
and the Locke token, as equity securities under Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 (“Exchange Act”).  On September 17, 2021, a day after filing the Form 10, American 
CryptoFed filed a Form S-1 registration statement (the “Form S-1”) seeking to register transactions 
involving the Ducat and Locke tokens under the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”).  The 
Form S-1 is not yet effective.    
 

II. 
 
 The Commission has information that tends to show that the Form S-1 may be deficient 
in that it may contain untrue statements of material fact or omit to state material facts necessary 
in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, 
not misleading, concerning, among other things, the Form S-1’s classification of the Ducat token 
and the Locke token as securities. 
 

III. 
 
 The Commission, deeming such acts and practices, if true, to warrant proceedings 
pursuant to Section 8(d) of the Securities Act finds it necessary and appropriate and hereby: 
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 ORDERS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 8(e) of the Securities Act that an 
examination be made to determine whether a stop order should be issued under Section 8(d) of 
the Securities Act with respect to the Form S-1 and any supplements and amendments thereto; 
and 
 

FURTHER ORDERS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 8(e) of the Securities Act that 
for purposes of such investigation, Kristina Littman, Deborah Tarasevich, Martin Zerwitz, 
Michael Baker, Christopher Bruckmann, John Lucas, Jonathan Austin, Pei Chung, and Elizabeth 
Doisy, and each of them, are hereby designated as officers of the Commission and are 
empowered to have access to and may demand the production of any books and papers of, and 
may administer oaths and affirmations to, and examine, American CryptoFed, or any other 
person, in respect of any matter relevant to the examination, and may, in their discretion, require 
the production of a balance sheet exhibiting the assets and liabilities of American CryptoFed or 
its income statement, or both, to be certified by a public or certified accountant approved by the 
Commission. 
 
 

By the Commission.   
  
 
 
 

     Vanessa A. Countryman 
      Secretary 
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DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT  
 
June 28, 2022  
 
VIA UPS AND E-MAIL   
Scott Moeller 
CEO, American CryptoFed DAO 
1607 Capitol Ave., Suite 327 
Cheyenne, WY 82001 
 
Re: In the Matter of American CryptoFed DAO LLC  

 
Dear Mr. Moeller:  
 
 The enclosed subpoena has been issued pursuant to an Order Directing Examination and 
Designating Officers Pursuant to Section 8(e) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”), 
regarding the Form S-1 that American CryptoFed DAO LLC (“American CryptoFed”) filed with 
the United States Securities and Exchange Commission on September 17, 2021. The subpoena 
requires you to provide us with sworn testimony. 
 
 Please read the subpoena and this letter carefully. This letter answers some questions you 
may have about the subpoena. You should also read the enclosed SEC Form 1662. If you do not 
comply with this subpoena, the SEC may bring an action in Federal Court to enforce this 
subpoena. Failure to comply with a court order enforcing this subpoena may result in the court 
imposing a fine, imprisonment or both.   
 
Where and when do I testify? 
 
 The subpoena requires you to testify via Webex video conference at 11 a.m. ET on July 
7, 2022 under oath in the matter identified on the subpoena.  
 
May I have a lawyer help me respond to the subpoena? 
 
 Yes. You have the right to consult with and be represented by your own lawyer in this 
matter. If you are represented by a lawyer when you testify, your lawyer may advise and 
accompany you when you testify. We cannot give you legal advice. 
 
What will the Commission do with the testimony I provide? 
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 The enclosed SEC Form 1662 explains how we may use the information you provide to 
the Commission. This form also has other important information for you. Please read it carefully. 
 
Has the Commission determined that anyone has done anything wrong? 
 
 This examination is a non-public, fact-finding inquiry. We are trying to determine 
whether there have been any violations of the federal securities laws. The examination does not 
mean that we have concluded that anyone has violated the law. Also, the examination does not 
mean that we have a negative opinion of any person, entity or security. 
 
Important Policy Concerning Settlements 
 
 Please note that, in any matter in which enforcement action is ultimately deemed to be 
warranted, the Division of Enforcement will not recommend any settlement to the Commission 
unless the party wishing to settle certifies, under penalty of perjury, that all documents 
responsive to Commission subpoenas and formal and informal document requests in this matter 
have been produced. 
 
I have read this letter, the subpoena, and the SEC Form 1662, but I still have questions. What 
should I do? 
 
 If you have any other questions, you may call me at (202) 551-4471. If you are 
represented by a lawyer, you should have your lawyer contact me.   
 

Sincerely, 
 
/s Michael C. Baker 
Michael C. Baker  
Senior Counsel 
Division of Enforcement 

 (202) 551-4471 
 bakermic@sec.gov 

 
 
Enclosures: Subpoena 

SEC Form 1662 
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SUBPOENA 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

 
In the Matter of American CryptoFed DAO LLC 

 
To:  Scott Moeller 

CEO, American CryptoFed DAO 
1607 Capitol Ave., Suite 327 
Cheyenne, WY 82001 

 

☐ YOU MUST PRODUCE everything specified in the Attachment to this subpoena to officers of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission, at the place, date and time specified below: 
 

☒ YOU MUST TESTIFY before officers of the Securities and Exchange Commission, at the place, date and 
time specified below: 
Via Webex video conference 
July 7, 2022 at 11 a.m. ET. 
  

FEDERAL LAW REQUIRES YOU TO COMPLY WITH THIS SUBPOENA. 
If you do not comply with this subpoena, the SEC may bring an action in Federal Court to enforce this subpoena. 

Failure to comply with a court order enforcing this subpoena may result in the court imposing a fine, imprisonment, or both. 
 

By:     /s Michael C. Baker  Date:     June 28, 2022 

Michael C. Baker, Senior Counsel 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 
100 F. Street, NE 
Washington, DC 20549 

 
I am an officer of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission authorized to issue subpoenas in this matter. The 
Securities and Exchange Commission has issued an examination order under Section 8(e) of the Securities Act of 
1933. 
NOTICE TO WITNESS: If you claim a witness fee or mileage, submit this subpoena with the claim voucher.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION  
Washington, D.C. 20549 

 
Supplemental Information for Persons Requested to Supply  
Information Voluntarily or Directed to Supply Information  

Pursuant to a Commission Subpoena 
 
A.  False Statements and Documents 
Section 1001 of Title 18 of the United States Code provides that fines and terms of imprisonment may be imposed 
upon: 

[W]hoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of the executive, legislative, or judicial branch of the 
Government of the United States, knowingly and willfully-- 

(1)  falsifies, conceals, or covers up by any trick, scheme, or device a material fact; 
(2)  makes any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation; or 
(3)  makes or uses any false writing or document knowing the same to contain any materially false, 
fictitious, or fraudulent statement or entry. 
 

Section 1519 of Title 18 of the United States Code provides that fines and terms of imprisonment may be imposed 
upon: 

Whoever knowingly alters, destroys, mutilates, conceals, covers up, falsifies, or makes a false entry in any 
record, document, or tangible object with the intent to impede, obstruct, or influence the investigation or 
proper administration of any matter within the jurisdiction of any department or agency of the United States 
. . ., or in relation to or contemplation of any such matter. 

B.  Testimony 

If your testimony is taken, you should be aware of the following: 

1. Record.  Your testimony will be transcribed by a reporter. If you desire to go off the record, please indicate this to 
the Commission employee taking your testimony, who will determine whether to grant your request. The reporter 
will not go off the record at your, or your counsel’s, direction.  

2. Counsel.  You have the right to be accompanied, represented and advised by counsel of your choice. Your 
counsel may advise you before, during and after your testimony; question you briefly at the conclusion of your 
testimony to clarify any of the answers you give during testimony; and make summary notes during your 
testimony solely for your use. If you are accompanied by counsel, you may consult privately.  

If you are not accompanied by counsel, please advise the Commission employee taking your testimony if, during the 
testimony, you desire to be accompanied, represented and advised by counsel. Your testimony will be adjourned 
once to afford you the opportunity to arrange to be so accompanied, represented or advised.  

You may be represented by counsel who also represents other persons involved in the Commission’s investigation. 
This multiple representation, however, presents a potential conflict of interest if one client’s interests are or may be 
adverse to another’s. If you are represented by counsel who also represents other persons involved in the 
investigation, the Commission will assume that you and counsel have discussed and resolved all issues concerning 
possible conflicts of interest. The choice of counsel, and the responsibility for that choice, is yours.  

3. Transcript Availability.  Rule 6 of the Commission’s Rules Relating to Investigations, 17 CFR 203.6, states:  

A person who has submitted documentary evidence or testimony in a formal investigative proceeding 
shall be entitled, upon written request, to procure a copy of his documentary evidence or a transcript of 
his testimony on payment of the appropriate fees: Provided, however, That in a nonpublic formal 
investigative proceeding the Commission may for good cause deny such request. In any event, any 
witness, upon proper identification, shall have the right to inspect the official transcript of the witness’ 
own testimony. 

If you wish to purchase a copy of the transcript of your testimony, the reporter will provide you with a copy of the 
appropriate form. Persons requested to supply information voluntarily will be allowed the rights provided by this rule. 

4. Perjury.  Section 1621 of Title 18 of the United States Code provides that fines and terms of imprisonment may 
be imposed upon: 

Whoever-- 
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(1) having taken an oath before a competent tribunal, officer, or person, in any case in which a law of 
the United States authorizes an oath to be administered, that he will testify, declare, depose, or certify 
truly, or that any written testimony, declaration, deposition, or certificate by him subscribed, is true, 
willfully and contrary to such oath states or subscribes any material matter which he does not believe to 
be true; or 

(2) in any declaration, certificate, verification, or statement under penalty of perjury as permitted under 
section 1746 of title 28, United States Code, willfully subscribes as true any material matter which he 
does not believe to be true. 

5. Fifth Amendment and Voluntary Testimony. Information you give may be used against you in any federal, state, 
local or foreign administrative, civil or criminal proceeding brought by the Commission or any other agency. 

You may refuse, in accordance with the rights guaranteed to you by the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the 
United States, to give any information that may tend to incriminate you. 

If your testimony is not pursuant to subpoena, your appearance to testify is voluntary, you need not answer any 
question, and you may leave whenever you wish. Your cooperation is, however, appreciated. 

6. Formal Order Availability. If the Commission has issued a formal order of investigation, it will be shown to you 
during your testimony, at your request. If you desire a copy of the formal order, please make your request in writing.  

C.  Submissions and Settlements 

Rule 5(c) of the Commission’s Rules on Informal and Other Procedures, 17 CFR 202.5(c), states: 

Persons who become involved in . . . investigations may, on their own initiative, submit a written 
statement to the Commission setting forth their interests and position in regard to the subject matter 
of the investigation. Upon request, the staff, in its discretion, may advise such persons of the 
general nature of the investigation, including the indicated violations as they pertain to them, and 
the amount of time that may be available for preparing and submitting a statement prior to the 
presentation of a staff recommendation to the Commission for the commencement of an 
administrative or injunction proceeding. Submissions by interested persons should be forwarded to 
the appropriate Division Director or Regional Director with a copy to the staff members conducting 
the investigation and should be clearly referenced to the specific investigation to which they relate. 
In the event a recommendation for the commencement of an enforcement proceeding is presented 
by the staff, any submissions by interested persons will be forwarded to the Commission in 
conjunction with the staff memorandum. 

The staff of the Commission routinely seeks to introduce submissions made pursuant to Rule 5(c) as evidence in 
Commission enforcement proceedings, when the staff deems appropriate. 

Rule 5(f) of the Commission’s Rules on Informal and Other Procedures, 17 CFR 202.5(f), states:  

In the course of the Commission’s investigations, civil lawsuits, and administrative proceedings, the 
staff, with appropriate authorization, may discuss with persons involved the disposition of such 
matters by consent, by settlement, or in some other manner. It is the policy of the Commission, 
however, that the disposition of any such matter may not, expressly or impliedly, extend to any 
criminal charges that have been, or may be, brought against any such person or any 
recommendation with respect thereto. Accordingly, any person involved in an enforcement matter 
before the Commission who consents, or agrees to consent, to any judgment or order does so 
solely for the purpose of resolving the claims against him in that investigative, civil, or 
administrative matter and not for the purpose of resolving any criminal charges that have been, or 
might be, brought against him. This policy reflects the fact that neither the Commission nor its staff 
has the authority or responsibility for instituting, conducting, settling, or otherwise disposing of 
criminal proceedings. That authority and responsibility are vested in the Attorney General and 
representatives of the Department of Justice. 

D.  Freedom of Information Act 

The Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. 552 (the “FOIA”), generally provides for disclosure of information to the 
public. Rule 83 of the Commission’s Rules on Information and Requests, 17 CFR 200.83, provides a procedure by 
which a person can make a written request that information submitted to the Commission not be disclosed under the 
FOIA. That rule states that no determination as to the validity of such a request will be made until a request for 
disclosure of the information under the FOIA is received. Accordingly, no response to a request that information not 
be disclosed under the FOIA is necessary or will be given until a request for disclosure under the FOIA is received. If 
you desire an acknowledgment of receipt of your written request that information not be disclosed under the FOIA, 
please provide a duplicate request, together with a stamped, self-addressed envelope.  

Am. CryptoFed DAO Exhibit 246



 
 

 
 

E.  Authority for Solicitation of Information 

Persons Directed to Supply Information Pursuant to Subpoena. The authority for requiring production of information is 
set forth in the subpoena. Disclosure of the information to the Commission is mandatory, subject to the valid assertion 
of any legal right or privilege you might have. 

Persons Requested to Supply Information Voluntarily. One or more of the following provisions authorizes the 
Commission to solicit the information requested: Sections 19 and/or 20 of the Securities Act of 1933; Section 21 of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; Section 321 of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939; Section 42 of the Investment 
Company Act of 1940; Section 209 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940; and 17 CFR 202.5. Disclosure of the 
requested information to the Commission is voluntary on your part. 

F.  Effect of Not Supplying Information 

Persons Directed to Supply Information Pursuant to Subpoena. If you fail to comply with the subpoena, the 
Commission may seek a court order requiring you to do so. If such an order is obtained and you thereafter fail to 
supply the information, you may be subject to civil and/or criminal sanctions for contempt of court. In addition, Section 
21(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Section 42(c) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, and Section 
209(c) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 provide that fines and terms of imprisonment may be imposed upon 
any person who shall, without just cause, fail or refuse to attend and testify or to answer any lawful inquiry, or to 
produce books, papers, correspondence, memoranda, and other records in compliance with the subpoena. 

Persons Requested to Supply Information Voluntarily. There are no direct sanctions and thus no direct effects for 
failing to provide all or any part of the requested information. 

G.  Principal Uses of Information 

The Commission’s principal purpose in soliciting the information is to gather facts in order to determine whether any 
person has violated, is violating, or is about to violate any provision of the federal securities laws or rules for which 
the Commission has enforcement authority, such as rules of securities exchanges and the rules of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. Facts developed may, however, constitute violations of other laws or rules. Information 
provided may be used in Commission and other agency enforcement proceedings. Unless the Commission or its staff 
explicitly agrees to the contrary in writing, you should not assume that the Commission or its staff acquiesces in, 
accedes to, or concurs or agrees with, any position, condition, request, reservation of right, understanding, or any 
other statement that purports, or may be deemed, to be or to reflect a limitation upon the Commission’s receipt, use, 
disposition, transfer, or retention, in accordance with applicable law, of information provided. 

H.  Routine Uses of Information 

The Commission often makes its files available to other governmental agencies, particularly United States Attorneys 
and state prosecutors. There is a likelihood that information supplied by you will be made available to such agencies 
where appropriate. Whether or not the Commission makes its files available to other governmental agencies is, in 
general, a confidential matter between the Commission and such other governmental agencies. 

Set forth below is a list of the routine uses which may be made of the information furnished. 

1. To appropriate agencies, entities, and persons when (1) the SEC suspects or has confirmed that there has been a 
breach of the system of records, (2) the SEC has determined that as a result of the suspected or confirmed breach 
there is a risk of harm to individuals, the SEC (including its information systems, programs, and operations), the 
Federal Government, or national security; and (3) the disclosure made to such agencies, entities, and persons is 
reasonably necessary to assist in connection with the SEC’s efforts to respond to the suspected or confirmed breach 
or to prevent, minimize, or remedy such harm. 

2. To other Federal, state, local, or foreign law enforcement agencies; securities self-regulatory organizations; and 
foreign financial regulatory authorities to assist in or coordinate regulatory or law enforcement activities with the SEC. 

3. To national securities exchanges and national securities associations that are registered with the SEC, the 
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board; the Securities Investor Protection Corporation; the Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board; the Federal banking authorities, including, but not limited to, the Board of Governors of 
the Federal Reserve System, the Comptroller of the Currency, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation; state 
securities regulatory agencies or organizations; or regulatory authorities of a foreign government in connection with 
their regulatory or enforcement responsibilities. 

4. By SEC personnel for purposes of investigating possible violations of, or to conduct investigations authorized by, 
the Federal securities laws. 

5. In any proceeding where the Federal securities laws are in issue or in which the Commission, or past or present 
members of its staff, is a party or otherwise involved in an official capacity. 
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6. In connection with proceedings by the Commission pursuant to Rule 102(e) of its Rules of Practice, 17 CFR 
201.102(e). 

7. To a bar association, state accountancy board, or other Federal, state, local, or foreign licensing or oversight 
authority; or professional association or self-regulatory authority to the extent that it performs similar functions 
(including the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board) for investigations or possible disciplinary action. 

8. To a Federal, state, local, tribal, foreign, or international agency, if necessary to obtain information relevant to the 
SEC’s decision concerning the hiring or retention of an employee; the issuance of a security clearance; the letting of 
a contract; or the issuance of a license, grant, or other benefit. 

9. To a Federal, state, local, tribal, foreign, or international agency in response to its request for information 
concerning the hiring or retention of an employee; the issuance of a security clearance; the reporting of an 
investigation of an employee; the letting of a contract; or the issuance of a license, grant, or other benefit by the 
requesting agency, to the extent that the information is relevant and necessary to the requesting agency’s decision on 
the matter. 

10. To produce summary descriptive statistics and analytical studies, as a data source for management information, 
in support of the function for which the records are collected and maintained or for related personnel management 
functions or manpower studies; may also be used to respond to general requests for statistical information (without 
personal identification of individuals) under the Freedom of Information Act. 

11. To any trustee, receiver, master, special counsel, or other individual or entity that is appointed by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, or as a result of an agreement between the parties in connection with litigation or 
administrative proceedings involving allegations of violations of the Federal securities laws (as defined in section 
3(a)(47) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C. 78c(a)(47)) or pursuant to the Commission’s Rules of 
Practice, 17 CFR 201.100 through 900 or the Commission’s Rules of Fair Fund and Disgorgement Plans, 17 CFR 
201.1100 through 1106, or otherwise, where such trustee, receiver, master, special counsel, or other individual or 
entity is specifically designated to perform particular functions with respect to, or as a result of, the pending action or 
proceeding or in connection with the administration and enforcement by the Commission of the Federal securities 
laws or the Commission’s Rules of Practice or the Rules of Fair Fund and Disgorgement Plans. 

12. To any persons during the course of any inquiry, examination, or investigation conducted by the SEC’s staff, or in 
connection with civil litigation, if the staff has reason to believe that the person to whom the record is disclosed may 
have further information about the matters related therein, and those matters appeared to be relevant at the time to 
the subject matter of the inquiry. 

13. To interns, grantees, experts, contractors, and others who have been engaged by the Commission to assist in the 
performance of a service related to this system of records and who need access to the records for the purpose of 
assisting the Commission in the efficient administration of its programs, including by performing clerical, 
stenographic, or data analysis functions, or by reproduction of records by electronic or other means. Recipients of 
these records shall be required to comply with the requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974, as amended, 5 U.S.C. 
552a. 

14. In reports published by the Commission pursuant to authority granted in the Federal securities laws (as such term 
is defined in section 3(a)(47) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C. 78c(a)(47)), which authority shall 
include, but not be limited to, section 21(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C. 78u(a)). 

15. To members of advisory committees that are created by the Commission or by Congress to render advice and 
recommendations to the Commission or to Congress, to be used solely in connection with their official designated 
functions. 

16. To any person who is or has agreed to be subject to the Commission’s Rules of Conduct, 17 CFR 200.735-1 
through 200.735-18, and who assists in the investigation by the Commission of possible violations of the Federal 
securities laws (as such term is defined in section 3(a)(47) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C. 
78c(a)(47)), in the preparation or conduct of enforcement actions brought by the Commission for such violations, or 
otherwise in connection with the Commission’s enforcement or regulatory functions under the Federal securities laws. 

17. To a Congressional office from the record of an individual in response to an inquiry from the Congressional office 
made at the request of that individual. 

18. To members of Congress, the press, and the public in response to inquiries relating to particular Registrants and 
their activities, and other matters under the Commission’s jurisdiction. 

19. To prepare and publish information relating to violations of the Federal securities laws as provided in 15 U.S.C. 
78c(a)(47)), as amended. 

20. To respond to subpoenas in any litigation or other proceeding. 
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21. To a trustee in bankruptcy. 

22. To any governmental agency, governmental or private collection agent, consumer reporting agency or 
commercial reporting agency, governmental or private employer of a debtor, or any other person, for collection, 
including collection by administrative offset, Federal salary offset, tax refund offset, or administrative wage 
garnishment, of amounts owed as a result of Commission civil or administrative proceedings. 

23. To another Federal agency or Federal entity, when the SEC determines that information from this system of 
records is reasonably necessary to assist the recipient agency or entity in (1) responding to a suspected or confirmed 
breach or (2) preventing, minimizing, or remedying the risk of harm to individuals, the recipient agency or entity 
(including its information systems, programs, and operations), the Federal Government, or national security, resulting 
from a suspected or confirmed breach. 

* * * * * 

Small Business Owners: The SEC always welcomes comments on how it can better assist small businesses. If you 
would like more information, or have questions or comments about federal securities regulations as they affect small 
businesses, please contact the Office of Small Business Policy, in the SEC’s Division of Corporation Finance, at 202-
551-3460. If you would prefer to comment to someone outside of the SEC, you can contact the Small Business 
Regulatory Enforcement Ombudsman at http://www.sba.gov/ombudsman or toll free at 888-REG-FAIR. The 
Ombudsman’s office receives comments from small businesses and annually evaluates federal agency enforcement 
activities for their responsiveness to the special needs of small business. 
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RESPONDENT 

AMERICAN CRYPTOFED DAO LLC  
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
Before the 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING File 
No. 3-20650 

 

 

UNDER SEAL 
 

NOTICE 
 

The Division of Enforcement (“Division”) is providing notice of a subpoena it sent pursuant 

to the Securities and Exchange Commission’s November 9, 2021 Order Directing Examination and 

designating Officers Pursuant to Section 8(e) of the Securities Act of 1933.   

Rule 230(g) reads in part: 

The Division of Enforcement shall promptly inform the hearing officer and each 
party if investigatory subpoenas are issued under the same investigation file number 
or pursuant to the same order directing private investigation (“formal order”) under 
which the investigation leading to the institution of proceedings was conducted. 

17 C.F.R. §201.230(g). The rule contains no analogous provision regarding subpoenas issued 

pursuant to separate Orders of Examination pursuant to Section 8(e), even if those orders cover 

similar subject matter or involve the same persons.  

Nonetheless, out of an abundance of caution, the Division is providing this notice that it 

issued the attached subpoena earlier this week to Scott Moeller, President of Respondent American 

CryptoFed DAO LLC (“American CryptoFed”). The subpoena was not issued pursuant to a Formal 

Order of Investigation, but pursuant to the November 9, 2021 Order of Examination referenced 

above. A copy of the subpoena is attached to this Notice. 

 
In the Matter of 

 
American CryptoFed DAO LLC,  

Respondent. 
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 This Notice is being filed under seal because it discusses a Non-Public Commission Order. 

A Motion to Seal will be filed separately. 

 

Dated: June 30, 2022 Respectfully submitted, 
 

/s/ Christopher Bruckmann  
Christopher Bruckmann  (202) 551-5986 
Martin Zerwitz (202) 551-4566 
Michael Baker (202) 551-4471 
Christopher J. Carney  (202) 551-2379 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
100 F Street, N.E. 
Washington, D.C. 20549-5949 
bruckmannc@sec.gov 
zerwitzm@sec.gov  
bakermic@sec.gov 
carneyc@sec.gov 
COUNSEL FOR 
DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

I hereby certify that I caused true copies of the Division of Enforcement’s Notice to be 
served on the following on June 30, 2022, in the manner indicated below: 

 
By Email: 

 
Scott Moeller 
scott.moeller@americancryptofed.org President 
American CryptoFed DAO LLC 

 
Zhou Xiaomeng 
zhouxm@americancryptofed.org 
Chief Operating Officer 
American CryptoFed DAO LLC 

 
 

/s/ Christopher Bruckmann 
Christopher Bruckmann 
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RESPONDENT 

AMERICAN CRYPTOFED DAO LLC  

 

 

EXHIBIT 5 
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June 8, 2022 
Via Electronic Email 
 
Christopher M. Bruckmann, Trial Counsel, Trial Unit 
Division of Enforcement, U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 
100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-5949 
Phone 202-551-5986, Email: bruckmannc@sec.gov 
 
Cc: 
Martin Zerwitz, Division of Enforcement, ZerwitzM@sec.gov 
Michael Baker, Division of Enforcement, BakerMic@sec.gov 
Christopher Carney, Division of Enforcement, CarneyC@sec.gov 
 

Re: In the Matter of American CryptoFed, AP File No. 3-20650:  
Cease and Desist Order Request 
 

Dear Mr. Bruckmann, 

Thank you for your June 3, 2022, letter responding to my Cease-and-Desist Order Request. I 

would like to reply to your letter to increase our mutual understanding and explore possible 

solutions, including but not limited to, your request in this letter for a meet-and-confer session.  

 

A. 8(e) Examination Order 

In your June 3, 2022, letter at page 2, you stated the following: 

 

The Form S-1 is not yet effective as it contains a delaying amendment. Moreover, the 
Commission, on November 9, 2021, issued an Order Directing Examination and Designating 
Officers Pursuant to Section 8(e) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“8(e) Examination Order”), 
which we are serving on you today along with this letter. 

 
Is there any provision of law which allows the Division of Enforcement (“Division”) to delay 

the service to American CryptoFed for approximately 174 days?  

We were surprised by this order. We were ambushed by the Division’s opaque tactic. The 

delay significantly damages our capacity to construe our defense strategy. If the order was served 

timely on us, we would have taken a different defense strategy. We believe this order should be 

nulled as if it were not issued.  
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B. Meet-and-Confer Session 

In your June 3, 2022, letter at page 3, you stated the following: 

 
We continue to believe that requesting an expedited briefing schedule is the appropriate 

course of action in this matter and suggest we meet and confer to discuss a joint motion 
requesting an expedited briefing schedule. Please let us know your availability for a meet-
and-confer session. 
 

 On December 15, 2021, over five months ago, American CryptoFed filed the Motion to 

Lift the Stay Order below pursuant to Rule 250. Dispositive motions.  

RESPONDENT AMERICAN CRYPTOFED DAO LLC’S MOTION TO LIFT THE 
ORDER THAT STAYS THE EFFECTIVENESS OF RESPONDENT’S FORM 10 (“Motion 
to Lift the Stay Order”)  

 

  Rule 250 states the following:   

(a) Motion for a ruling on the pleadings. No later than 14 days after a respondent’s answer 
has been filed, any party may move for a ruling on the pleadings on one or more claims or 
defenses, asserting that, even accepting all of the non-movant’s factual allegations as true 
and drawing all reasonable inferences in the non-movant’s favor, the movant is entitled to 
a ruling as a matter of law. The hearing officer shall promptly grant or deny the motion 
(emphasis added).  

 

According to Rule 250, American CryptoFed is entitled to a prompt “ruling as a matter of 

law” under the condition of “even accepting all of the non-movant’s factual allegations as true 

and drawing all reasonable inferences in the non-movant’s favor”. American CryptoFed’s 

Motion to Lift the Stay Order is a dispositive motion. “The hearing officer shall promptly grant 

or deny the motion”, Rule 250 above mandates. Therefore, “a joint motion requesting an 

expedited briefing schedule” as you suggested above is not needed. What the Division and 

American CryptoFed should do jointly is to urge the Securities and Exchange Commission 

(“Commission”) to comply with Rule 250 and to promptly make a ruling on American 

CryptoFed’s Motion to Lift the Stay Order. If the Motion to Lift the Stay Order is granted, the 

implication is that the Division does not have a valid case, even under the condition of accepting 

all of the Division’s factual allegations as true and drawing all reasonable inference in the 

Division’s favor. 

We suggest we have a meet-and-confer session to jointly file a motion, pursuant to Rule 250, 

to request the Commission to make a ruling on the Motion to Lift the Stay Order to which 

��������������������������������
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American CryptoFed is entitled. It is overdue. Please let us know your availability for a meet-

and-confer session for this purpose.  

C. Non-Fungible Token (“NFT”) Certificates 

In your June 3, 2022, letter at page 4, you stated the following: 
 

Your planned distribution, as described in your May 30, 2022 letter, appears to compound 
these problems. The letter outlines a plan to introduce Non-Fungible Token (or “NFT”) 
certificates into the offering process. Neither American CryptoFed’s Form 10, nor its Form S-1 
contain any disclosures regarding the use of NFT certificates as part of the offering process. 
Based on your description of this process it certainly appears that this is material information that 
a reasonable investor would want to know, and its omission from both the Form 10 and Form S-1 
raises questions as to whether American CryptoFed offering or selling the Locke or Ducat tokens 
in this manner would violate the antifraud provisions of the federal securities laws. 
 

We only use the NFT certificates as a method of delivery, not as a product. The purpose is to 

avoid delivering a tradable and fungible Locke token. Once we finalize the design, we will file 

an amendment to the Form 10 filing to disclose the NFT process. We proactively disclosed our 

activities via EDGAR until the Commission issued the Stay Order on November 10, 2021, which 

stopped our Form 10 filing. We would like to ask the Commission to grant our Motion to Lift the 

Stay Order as soon as possible, so that we can constantly and proactively disclose our activities. 

To be clear, it is the Division and the Commission that stopped our efforts to timely disclose our 

activities by issuing the Stay Order on American CryptoFed’s Form 10 filing which states the 

following:  

CryptoFed is registering Locke and Ducat tokens with the SEC as utility tokens, not as 
securities, for the purpose of disclosure. Form 10 allows CryptoFed to voluntarily become a 
reporting company for ongoing disclosure purposes and becomes effective sixty (60) days after 
the initial filing date regardless of whether there are outstanding SEC comments. Filing Form 10 
does not mean CryptoFed concedes that Locke and Ducat tokens are securities (emphasis 
added, page 5).  

 
We may be able to find better method than NFT certificates for delivery. Then, we will not 

need to use the NFT certificate method.  
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D. Howey Test 

In your June 3, 2022, letter at page 3, you stated the following: 

Request for Howey Analysis 
Your letter again requests our internal work product and analysis regarding why the Locke 

and Ducat tokens are securities. As we have explained, repeatedly, this information is privileged 
and protected from disclosure. We decline to provide it. We also remind you that you choose to 
register these tokens as securities by filing with the Commission a Form 10 which stated on the 
cover page that the Locke and Ducat tokens were “Securities to be registered pursuant to Section 
12(g) of the Act” (emphasis added). 

 

Does the Division have any legal justification to classify Locke and Ducat tokens as 

Securities other than by American CryptoFed’s filing of a Form 10 with the Commission per se? 

There are only two possible scenarios for this answer.  

  

i) If your answer is “No”, American CryptoFed can just withdraw the Form 10 filing,  

because the Division cannot prove the Locke and Ducat tokens are securities. The Commission 

no longer has jurisdiction over Locke token and Ducat token and American CryptoFed no longer 

needs to register the two tokens with the Commission. American CryptoFed withdrew its Form 

S1 filing on June 6, 2022 for the reason that the Locke and Ducat tokens are not securities.  

 

ii) If the Answer is “Yes”, the Division is then obligated to provide us with a Howey 

Test to substantiate its “Yes” answer and justify the November 10, 2021 Order Instituting 

Proceedings. To be clear, this request is not and has never been a request for the Division’s 

internal work product and analysis, whatsoever. As of today, the Division has failed to provide 

any substantive analysis in support of its position that the Locke and Ducat tokens are securities. 

In accordance with the plain text of 5 U.S. Code § 556 as shown below, the Division has the 

burden of proof to show that Locke token and Ducat token are securities, given that the 

Commission issued the November 10, 2021 Order Instituting Proceedings.  

 

5 U.S. Code § 556 - Hearings; presiding employees; powers and duties; burden of proof; 
evidence; record as basis of decision 
(d)Except as otherwise provided by statute, the proponent of a rule or order has the burden of 
proof. (Emphasis added). 
 
 

��������������������������������
�������	����
�
	�������

Am. CryptoFed DAO Exhibit 246



! ! !

1607 Capitol Ave., Suite 327, Cheyenne, WY 82001 
Phone: (307) 206 - 4210 | https://www.americancryptofed.org/ 

 

5!

The Supreme Court ruling in SEC v. W.J. Howey Co., 328 U.S. 293 (1946) stated the 

following: 

 

The term "investment contract" is undefined by the Securities Act or by relevant 
legislative reports. But the term was common in many state "blue sky" laws in existence prior to 
the adoption of the federal statute and, although the term was also undefined by the state laws, it 
had been broadly construed by state courts so as to afford the investing public a full measure of 
protection. Form was disregarded for substance and emphasis was placed upon economic 
reality. An investment contract thus came to mean a contract or scheme for "the placing of 
capital or laying out of money in a way intended to secure income or profit from its 
employment." State v. Gopher Tire & Rubber Co., 146 Minn. 52, 56, 177 N.W. 937, 938. This 
definition was uniformly applied by state courts to a variety of situations where individuals were 
led to invest money in a common enterprise with the expectation that they would earn a profit 
solely through the efforts of the promoter or of some one other than themselves. SEC v. W.J. 
Howey Co., 328 U.S. 293 (1946) at 298. (Emphasis added).  

The Division is aware of the Supreme Court ruling above, because on April 3, 2019, the 
Commission published on its website, [Framework for “Investment Contract” Analysis of Digital 
Assets], states the following at Note 6:  

Whether a contract, scheme, or transaction is an investment contract is a matter of federal, 
not state, law and does not turn on whether there is a formal contract between parties. Rather, 
under the Howey test, "form [is] disregarded for substance and the emphasis [is] on 
economic reality." Howey, 328 U.S. at 298. The Supreme Court has further explained that that 
the term security "embodies a flexible rather than a static principle" in order to meet the 
"variable schemes devised by those who seek the use of the money of others on the promise of 
profits." Id. at 299. (Emphasis added).  

Furthermore, Chair Gary Gensler has repeatedly emphasized that the Commission 

complies with the Supreme Court’s Howey Test to make judgements. There is no legal basis that 

the Division can carry out enforcement without providing a Howey Test analysis. Below are just 

three examples of Chair Gary Gensler’s policy remarks with which the Division should be well 

aware.  

On May 11, 2022:                                                                                                                 
 My predecessor Jay Clayton said it, and I will reiterate it: Without prejudging any one 
token, most crypto tokens are investment contracts under the Supreme Court’s Howey Test. 
https://www.sec.gov/news/speech/gensler-remarks-swaps-and-derivatives-association-annual-
meeting-051122 
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On April 4, 2022:           
 The Supreme Court’s 1946 Howey Test, which was about orange groves, says that an 
investment contract exists when there is the investment of money in a common enterprise with a 
reasonable expectation of profits to be derived from the efforts of others. 
https://www.sec.gov/news/speech/gensler-remarks-crypto-markets-040422  

On Aug. 3, 2021:          
 The following decade, the Supreme Court took up the definition of an investment 
contract. This case said an investment contract exists when “a person invests his money in a 
common enterprise and is led to expect profits solely from the efforts of the promoter or a third 
party.” The Supreme Court has repeatedly reaffirmed this Howey Test.                            
https://www.sec.gov/news/public-statement/gensler-aspen-security-forum-2021-08-03 

 

E. Request for a Cease-and-Desist Order 

In your June 3, 2022, letter at page 2 - 3, you stated the following: 

The Division of Enforcement does not issue orders, that is the role of the Commission. 
Additionally, while some Commission administrative proceedings are captioned as “Cease and 
Desist” proceedings (see, e.g., 15 U.S.C. §77h-1), there is no requirement that proceedings take 
that precise form in order to halt conduct. Here, the Commission’s November 10, 2021 Order 
Instituting Proceedings stays the effectiveness of American CryptoFed’s Form 10. At the 
conclusion of this proceeding, the Division of Enforcement may seek, and the Commission may 
enter, an order denying or revoking the registration of that Form 10. Neither the Commission nor 
the Division of Enforcement needs to use the phrase “Cease and Desist” in taking this step.  

Given that the Division has failed to provide any substantive analysis in support of its 

position, we have concluded that the Division is unable to prove that Locke token and Ducat 

Token are securities. The logical implication is that the Division and the Commission have no 

jurisdiction over Locke and Ducat tokens. As a result, American CryptoFed should withdraw its 

Form 10 filing for the reason that the Locke and Ducat tokens are not securities, as we already 

did for the Form S1 filing.  

Please let us know whether the Division agrees with our conclusion that the Division is 

unable to prove that Locke token and Ducat Token are securities in one week, on or before June 

15, 2022. Once we receive the Division’s agreement, we will file a Request for Withdrawal of 

Registration Statement on Form 10. After the withdrawal of both the Form 10 and Form S1 filing 

becomes effective, American CryptoFed will proceed with implementing its business plan 

exactly as described in the Form 10 and the Form S1. According to the Division, it is the Form 
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10 filing and the Form S1 filing that make Locke token and Ducat token securities, not the 

substance of the business plan itself.  

However, if the Division does not agree with our conclusion that the Division is unable to 

prove that Locke token and Ducat token are securities, and if the Division perceives any 

violations of related securities laws and wants to prohibit American CryptoFed from 

implementing the business plan, please seek authorization from the Commission to issue a 

Cease-and-Desist Order within 30 calendar days, on or before July 8, 2022, as the Division did 

for the November 10, 2021, Order Instituting Proceedings and the 8(e) Examination Order.  

If we do not receive a Cease-and-Desist order by July 8, 2022, including a Howey Test 

analysis or other legal justifications, we will assume that the Commission and the Division has 

no intention or authority to stop the implementation of business plan, because the Division is 

unable to prove that Locke token and Ducat token are securities. American CryptoFed has a 

critical mission to accomplish and has no choice now but to implement its business plan, while 

waiting for the Commission’s ruling on all the pending motions with patience. We do not 

complain about the Commission’s nondecision and indecision. However, we cannot afford to be 

left in limbo for any longer. The time is short, but the stakes are high. The Locke token 

distribution to the contributors will be granted in paper contracts, free of charge. The Locke 

token refundable auction will be conducted without moving funds. Even after we start the 

implementation on or after July 8, 2022, Locke tokens will not be allowed to trade until January 

1, 2023. Therefore, the Commission can still send a Cease-and-Desist Order with a Howey Test 

analysis justification by December 31, 2022. All transactions can be reversed easily and timely 

without causing any inconvenience and damages to anyone. We intentionally allow sufficient 

time to reverse all the transactions, in case that the Commission decides to send us a Cease-and-

Desist order including a Howey Test analysis justifying the Division’s position.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Scott Moeller  

President, American CryptoFed DAO 
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